
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

MINNETONKA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 

Tuesday, November 18, 2003 
6:00 P.M. 

 
Gray’s Bay Room 

Minnetonka Community Center, Upper Level 
 

1.  Call to Order. 
 
2.  Roll Call:  Paula Chatterjee   Peter St. Peter 
   Dan Duffy    Ken Tauer 
   Dave Larson    Al Thomas 
   Bunny Robinson   Bob Walker 
 
3.  Approve minutes of September 16, 2003 EDA meeting. 
 
4.  Staff Report. 
 
 

BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
5.  Discussion regarding density and public involvement—follow-up from June 
    10th meeting regarding proactive redevelopment. 
 
    Action recommended is to hold the discussion. 
 
6.  Other Business. 
 
     The next regular meeting of the EDA will be held on Tuesday, December 9, 
     2003. 
 
7.  Adjourn. 
 
 
 



  

 
Minnetonka Economic Development Authority 

Meeting Minutes 
 

September 16, 2003 
6:00 P.M. 

 
**Gray’s Bay Room** 

Minnetonka Community Center, Upper Level 
 

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER 
 
EDA President Peter St. Peter called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
2.  ROLL CALL 
 
EDA Commissioners present:  Paula Chatterjee (arrived late), Dan Duffy, Dave Larson, 
Bunny Robinson, Peter St. Peter, Ken Tauer, Al Thomas, and Bob Walker. 
 
Staff present:  Ron Rankin and Elise Souders. 
 
Others present:  Nellie Johnson, Vanessa Brown, and Shannon Bodnar from Crown 
Ridge apartments, and Winnie White Scherber. 
 
3.  APPROVE MINUTES 
 
Robinson moved, Larson seconded a motion to approve the minutes of the June 10, 
2003 EDA meeting.  All voted yes.  Motion passed. 
 
4.  STAFF REPORT 
 
Souders reviewed the staff report items, including Minnetonka Boulevard/County Road 
101, WHAHLT, Dial-a-Ride, the Southwest Rail Study, proposed developments, and 
upcoming events and meetings. 
 

BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

5.  COMMONBOND FUNDING REQUEST FOR THE CROWN RIDGE ADVANTAGE 
CENTER. 
 
Souders reviewed the request from CommonBond and provided information on what 
had been happening at the Crown Ridge Advantage Center.  She said CommonBond 
was requesting $10,000 for the Advantage Center at Crown Ridge and staff 
recommends approval. 
 



Minnetonka EDA Meeting Minutes  September 16, 2003 
  Page 2 

 

Rankin noted St. Peter, Mayor Anderson, city staff, CommonBond staff, and Hopkins 
School District staff met on June 20th to tour Crown Ridge, and in late October there will 
be a follow-up meeting. 
 
Thomas asked where the $10,000 would come from and how many children were living 
at Crown Ridge.  Rankin said the request would come out of the Livable Communities 
Account.  Vanessa Brown said there are 42 children currently living at Crown Ridge, 
and provided more detail regarding their summer school efforts. 
 
Duffy asked if CommonBond was confident they could raise the remaining $14,600.  Nellie 
Johnson explained CommonBond would be receiving a $5,000 to $6,000 grant from 
Hennepin County and General Mills was interested in possibly sponsoring Crown Ridge. 
 
Thomas noted in the recommendations part of the staff report that positive changes had 
been occurring, and he wondered if the positive changes were in the concerns 
previously expressed, including:  cleanliness, vacancies, and police calls.  Shannon 
Bodnar said recently a caretaker had been hired who will be living on-site, which should 
help address the cleanliness issues.  She said they had also have had six households 
move in, twelve applications are pending, and that the police calls had been reduced. 
 
Duffy asked how many vacancies there are currently.  Bodnar replied there are sixteen 
vacancies, with three to four move-ins scheduled for October.  She noted while the 
number of vacancies had not decreased a lot, the majority of the residents who had 
been creating a lot of the problems had left. 
 
Tauer inquired if there were more market rate units or more subsidized units that were 
vacant.  Bodnar said at the current time more of the subsidized units were open.  Tauer 
also asked if there was one type of unit that was difficult to rent than another.  Bodnar 
replied there was not one that was more difficult than another; however, currently there 
are more two bedrooms open than the rest.  St. Peter requested the specific breakdown 
of units be sent to staff to be included in the Council report. 
 
Tauer asked how the vacancy rate of Crown Ridge compared to other buildings.  
Bodnar said Crown Ridge has a vacancy rate of 16%, while it is at about 12% in most 
other suburban rental buildings, and with the move-ins and applications pending that 
Crown Ridge should be comparable to other buildings in the next few months. 
 
St. Peter asked how the police and school district staff felt about the changes that had 
occurred at Crown Ridge.  Souders replied the police staff said it does take time to 
notice changes in the frequency of police calls when there is a change in management, 
and they would continue to monitor what is occurring.  She also noted the school district 
staff would be continuing to work with Crown Ridge and their concern is that 
CommonBond continues to follow through on what they say they are going to do.  
Rankin noted with the police calls, while the number may not necessarily go down, what 
should be looked at is the severity of the calls.  Bodnar said they had been working with 
residents to teach them when it is appropriate to call and when it is not. 
 



Minnetonka EDA Meeting Minutes  September 16, 2003 
  Page 3 

 

Larson asked if the two bedroom units that are open accept vouchers and if they have 
any accessible units.  Bodnar said the two bedroom units have the most openings and 
they continue to see vouchers coming in.  She also said there are currently two 
accessible units that are open and they are working with agencies who serve possible 
occupants to fill these units. 
 
St. Peter asked Scherber if Crown Ridge had established any working relationships with 
the groups she or Neil Hering are apart of.  Scherber replied she was not aware of any.  
Bodnar said within the past several weeks, Crown Ridge had been doing direct mailings 
to churches and other agencies to talk about their programs. 
 
St. Peter asked Brown to explain how school registration went.  Brown said because the 
majority of children are returning students it meant filling out the appropriate paperwork 
and registering any new students.  She said they were also able to get the paperwork 
completed for free and reduced lunches.  Brown then expanded upon the collaboration 
that Crown Ridge has done with SCIP and how they are also working with Sojourner. 
 
Walker asked why $10,000 was requested and not a different amount.  Johnson replied  
$10,000 was the amount previously granted from the City to Crown Ridge, and to 
maintain that amount seemed appropriate.  St. Peter noted the original grant was 
intended to be a one-time start-up grant.  Rankin also mentioned it was to supplement 
the grant given by Hennepin County. 
 
Tauer said Minnetonka has had a commitment to affordable housing, and while the city 
should not become a social service provider, it is important to see Crown Ridge 
succeed and the $10,000 would be well spent. 
 
Tauer moved, Thomas seconded a motion to recommend approval by City Council of 
$10,000 in funding to CommonBond for the Crown Ridge Advantage Center.  All voted 
yes.  Motion passed. 
 
Discussion followed on if Minnetonka Heights would be requesting continued funding, 
and where the Livable Communities Account fund comes from and what it is to be used 
for. 
 
6.  RESOLUTION APPROVING A REDEVELOPMENT PLAN AND A HOUSING 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE MINNETONKA BOULEVARD/101 HOUSING 
DEVELOPMENT AND REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT. 
 
Rankin provided the background and said a housing development and redevelopment 
plan must be put in place before the city can receive the grant funds from Hennepin 
County.  He said the Planning Commission will have to review the plan as well to make 
sure it is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, and the City Council will also hold a 
public hearing on the plan.  Rankin said approval of the plan would mean there must be 
blight or blighting conditions in the proposed redevelopment area.  He explained what 
those conditions were and how they applied to this area. 
 



Minnetonka EDA Meeting Minutes  September 16, 2003 
  Page 4 

 

Tauer asked if the redevelopment district could be larger than what is proposed or if this 
was just being done for this particular project.  Rankin replied it was being done just for 
this request; however, in the future there could be the opportunity to expand it, provided 
it is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
St. Peter said if the district was larger than what is shown, then it would not be 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, because the Comprehensive Plan was 
changed just for this area. 
 
Larson said the evidence that was provided in the report was good and it coincides with 
the definitions presented.   
 
There was discussion on St. Louis Park and their ordinances on repairing homes before 
resale. 
 
Duffy asked who inspected the properties to make these findings.  Rankin said city 
building, electrical, and plumbing/heating inspectors looked at the properties and made 
the findings. 
 
Walker asked if other houses in the area might fall under the definitions of blight or 
blighting conditions.  Rankin said there most likely could be others besides these three.   
 
Walker also inquired if there has been any discussion on contiguous planning for the 
area.  Tauer said the developer of The Sanctuary tried to buy a fourth parcel; however, 
the intent was never to push much further north.  St. Peter said when the 
Comprehensive Plan was updated, they looked at reguiding four properties, then it 
became the southerly two, and finally none of the properties were reguided because of 
the public opposition.  Tauer added it would not be good to look at reguiding land further 
north and the Comprehensive Plan update did not even look further north.  It was 
thought these four parcels were a transition area with the school and other mid-density 
housing directly east and west of the area. 
 
Thomas moved, Walker seconded a motion to approve the resolution for the 
redevelopment plan and housing development plan for the Minnetonka Boulevard/101 
housing development and redevelopment project.  All voted yes.  Motion passed. 
 
Discussion followed on how much money was anticipated from the grant and how the 
city can help WHAHLT obtain the affordable units. 
 
7.  OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Rankin reviewed the upcoming meeting schedule. 
 
8.  ADJOURN 
 
Larson moved, Robinson seconded a motion to adjourn the meeting.  All voted yes.  
Motion passed.  The meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m. 



 
 TO:    EDA Commissioners 
 
FROM: Ron Rankin, Community Development Director 
  Elise Souders, Community Development Coordinator 
 
DATE:  November 10, 2003 
 
SUBJECT: Staff Report for November 18th EDA Meeting 
 
 
1.  Crown Ridge 
The City Council, at their September 29th meeting, approved the $10,000 funding 
request by CommonBond for Crown Ridge’s Advantage Center program.  In 
addition to the city’s contribution, the Hopkins School District family collaborative 
also granted Crown Ridge $10,000 this fall. 
 
On October 28th, city and school district representatives, and CommonBond staff 
met as a follow-up to a June meeting regarding Crown Ridge.  Many topics were 
discussed, including occupancy and a breakdown of how units are subsidized 
(included here as an attachment), current and future Advantage Center 
programming, and the possibility of opening a vacant apartment for school district 
and other programming to be held on site.  Another meeting was held on 
Nomveber 4th to further discuss the possibility of using a vacant apartment for 
school district programming.  CommonBond was open to the idea if they could 
re-coop at least part of the rent that would be lost.  Additionally, the school district 
was interested and all of this could be put in place by the first of the year. 
 
2.  Minnetonka Heights 
Programming at Minnetonka Heights continues.  During the summer, a twelve-
week program for youth (ages 5-12) was held on-site, and included field trips and 
other programming.  After-school programming happens five days per week and 
includes time for homework each day.  A new senior program leader has recently 
started and the focus is to connect with seniors to see what programming they 
would like.  A parent leadership initiative and international program are also in 
place.  Recently, the Minnetonka School District applied for a grant from the 
Alliance for Families and Children to focus on “at-risk” families in the district, 
many of who live at Minnetonka Heights.  The district was awarded a total of 
$33,000, and it will be divided amongst school district programs and the YMCA 
for such things as transportation, translators, family buddies, and other programs 
targeted to parent leadership and family stability. 



3.  Minnetonka Boulevard/County Road 101 
Since September, staff and consults have been working with business and 
property owners to work out access points and parking issues on the northeast 
and southeast corners.  Each corner has met twice and have finalized access 
point locations in preparation for the upcoming roadway improvements.  Also, 
some parking has also been rearranged to accommodate these access point 
locations.  The next full Business Association meeting will be held sometime in 
January to start on streetscaping design.  The timeline for roadway 
improvements are as follows: 

 Final plans for roadway and intersection improvements are currently 
being designed by Hennepin County. 

 Once final plans have been drawn, Hennepin County will begin the right-
of-way acquisition (early 2004). 

 When the right-of-way acquisition is complete, construction will begin (late 
2004/early 2005). 

 
4.  Southwest Rail Study 
The study to look at a modified 169/212 alignment has begun, and is expected to 
be completed around the end of December.  Several possible alignments have 
been identified and more analysis is being completed on the feasibility and 
impact these alignments may have. 
 
5.  Sanctuary Redevelopment Plan 
On October 27th, the City Council held a public hearing and adopted a resolution 
approving the redevelopment plan that Commissioners discussed at the 
September meeting.  Previously, the Planning Commission made a finding that 
the redevelopment plan was consistent with the city’s comprehensive plan. 
 
6.  2030 Framework 
The Metropolitan Council has prepared a draft document titled 2030 Framework, 
which, when adopted, will replace the Blueprint 2030 adopted last year.  A 
general outline of the document is attached and additional information sessions 
and public hearing dates are listed in the upcoming events section. 
 
7.  Dial-a-Ride 
*This is average daily ridership. 

  
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
**This number will change once all days are reported—missing two half days. 

 

 2002 2003 

July 5.85 31.81 

August 13.05 32.85 

September 21.55 31.76 

October 31.35 32.90** 



 
Upcoming Events 
 
Thursday, November 20th---2030 Framework Informational Meeting 
     6:30-8:00pm 
     Metro Transit Heywood Office (560 6th Ave. N., Mpls) 
 
Friday, November 21st---2030 Framework Informational Meeting 
          7:30-9:00am 
           Maplewood Community Center (2100 White Bear Ave., Maplewood) 
 
Wednesday, December 3rd---2030 Framework Public Hearing 
       11:30-1:30pm at Metro Transit Heywood Office 
        or 
        3:00-6:00pm at Mears Park Centre (230 E. Fifth St., St. Paul) 
 
Tuesday, December 9th---EDA Meeting 
           6:00pm 
           Gray’s Bay Room 
 
Wednesday, December 10th---Sensible Land Use Coalition Program 
         Guest Speaker:  George Latimer  

     11:30am-1:30pm 
         DoubleTree Park Place (St. Louis Park) 
 
Tuesday, January 13th---EDA Meeting 
          6:00pm 
          Gray’s Bay Room 
 
Attachments 
 

 Crown Ridge Occupancy and Advantage Center Highlights informational sheets 

 Crown Ridge October and November resident newsletters 

 2030 Framework outline and informational meeting sessions 

 “Met Council approves draft of new 30-year growth plan for metro area” 
Star Tribune, October 16, 2003 

 From Bob Walker: 
“Affordable housing rejected in reality” from The Business Journal 

 From Bunny Robinson: 
Write-up from the September 24th Sensible Land Use Coalition 
program—Civic Leadership Seminar  

 From Dave Larson: 
“National housing opportunity survey finds housing affordability to 
be a voting issue”  

 December 10th Sensible Land Use Coalition Program 
 



Upcoming EDA Meetings 
Updated November 10, 2003 

 

Meeting Date 
All meetings at 6:00 pm 
unless otherwise noted 

Item Description Room/Special Notes 

 
Tuesday, November 18 

 

 
Regular EDA Meeting 

Gray’s Bay Room 

 Density 
 

 
Tuesday, December 9 

 
Regular EDA Meeting 

 
Gray’s Bay Room 
 

2004   

Tuesday, January 13 Regular EDA Meeting Gray’s Bay Room 
 

 
Tuesday, February 10 

 
Regular EDA Meeting 

 
Gray’s Bay Room 

 
Tuesday, March 9 

 
Regular EDA Meeting 

 
Gray’s Bay Room 

 
Tuesday, April 13 

 
Regular EDA Meeting 

 
Gray’s Bay Room 

 
Tuesday, May 11 

 
Regular EDA Meeting 

 
Gray’s Bay Room 

 
Tuesday, June 8 

 
Regular EDA Meeting 

 
Gray’s Bay Room 

 
Tuesday, July 13 

 
Regular EDA Meeting 

 
Gray’s Bay Room 

 
Tuesday, August 10 

 
Regular EDA Meeting 

 
Gray’s Bay Room 

 
Tuesday, September 21 
(Please note the date) 

 
Regular EDA Meeting 

 
Gray’s Bay Room 

 
Tuesday, October 12 

 
Regular EDA Meeting 

 
Gray’s Bay Room 

 
Tuesday, November 9 

 
Regular EDA Meeting 

 
Gray’s Bay Room 

 
Tuesday, December 14 

 
Regular EDA Meeting 

 
Gray’s Bay Room 

 



Attachment 6 

 
Additional Resources 

 
American Planning Association----www.planning.org 
 
Minnesota Chapter of the American Planning Association---
www.mnapa.com 
 
Local Government Commissioner’s Center for Livable Communities--- 
www.lgc.org/freepub/index.html 
  **This website provides a variety of different papers, presentations, and 
     fact sheets on topics such as smart growth, density, and land use 
 
Urban Land Institute—the ULI/NMHC/AIA Joint Forum on Housing 
Density—http://research.uli.org/content/reports/policypapers.pfr_670.pdf 
 
Minnesota Planning—www.mnplan.state.mn.us 
 
Smart Growth Online—www.smartgrowth.org 
 
National Policy Analysis—www.nationalcenter.org/NPA239.html 
 
Reason Public Policy Institute—www.rppi.org/pb12central.html 
 
City of St. Louis Park---www.stlouispark.org 
 
Excelsior and Grand Project---www.excelsiorandgrand.com 
 
Burnsville’s Heart of the City---www.burnsvilleheartofthecity.com 
 
City of Golden Valley--- 
     www.ci.golden-valley.mn.us/community/envisionoverview.html 

 
Urban Land Institute---www.uli.org 
 
Cyburbia (provides links on urban planning issues)---www.cyburbia.org 
 
The Town Paper (provides links to Traditional Neighborhood 
Developments)---www.tndtownpaper.com/neighborhoods.htm 
 
 
 
 




















